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TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of the Hong Kong Productivity Council (the
“Council”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 5 to 52, which comprise the
consolidated and the Council's statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and
the consolidated and the Council’s income and expenditure account, the consolidated
statement of changes in funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2022, and of the Group and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as management
of the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Council are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management of the Council either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the Council members in overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MBS TR R AENET AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
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a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

SENR BIAKHEMBESREBRS
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MREMEBIES RSB EERER T s EINETE We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
AR EAES RS BERMAESRH scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
Bl B R ERIEHI AT R AR ERRS - deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
BB EERSTHIEBMERAT BDO Limited
BEETHAD Certified Public Accountants
FEE Tam Kwok Yiu
BERTE SRS : P02575 Practicing Certificate No. P02575
BB, 20278278 Hong Kong, 27 July 2022
4 HENRE BIAKRYMBSRMBRS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2022 % 3 A 31 B 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Fy & BT BEETIT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
JEiRENEE Non-current assets
MIZE ~ BREFIRAE Property, plant and equipment 6 186,753 197,986
M S Intangible assets 7 9,492 8,395
PREEE Right-of-use assets 13 861 1374
197,106 207,755
MENEE Current assets
FEWBRFA R E TR EN & B Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 229,706 262,760
AR FLIE Tax refundable 23(c) - 2
RS~ BIT RSN TEHER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,715,170 1,090,658
1,944,876 1,353,420
mENBE Current liabilities
EIERANEMTE AE Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11 1,544,750 1,017,246
HESE Lease liabilities 14 461 519
FERLIE Tax payable 23(c) 162 214
1,545,373 1,017,979
mBEERE Net current assets 399,503 335,441
BEERTEISE Total assets less current liabilities 596,609 543,196
JEREIEE Non-current liabilities
HEERE Lease liabilities 14 466 926
BEE Net assets 596,143 542,270
wEs Total funds
Y ENRBELERENS L#RE Capital subvention fund and reserves 594,137 540,557
attributable to the Council
JEE R R A Non-controlling interests 15(dl) 2,006 1,713
wEw Total funds 15 596,143 542,270
SENBR 2022 F 7 B 27 BROEWF A -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 July 2022.
HEL =Ex
Lin Sun Mo, Willy Patrick Wong Chi Kwong
FE BIERE
Chairman Deputy Chairman
YENRE BUIREMBEREHERS 5
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Statement of Financial Position

#HZ 2022 F 3 B 31 HIEZEE Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
&t BETT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERBEE Non-current assets
M ~ BRI Property, plant and equipment 6 186,030 197,374
& E Intangible assets 7 9,459 8,362
FREEE Right-of-use assets 13 847 1,270
RHBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 8 18,722 18,722
215,058 225,728
MENEE Current assets
FEWEBRFA R B TREN & & Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 225,526 260,411
FEU B A R FIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 12 1,276 810
BE  RITEARNEEER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,686,493 1,068,119
1,913,295 1,329,340
mENEE Current liabilities
RSN EMTEAE Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11 1,538,262 1,014,018
FER B ARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 12 12,024 11,926
HEAE Lease liabilities 14 443 423
1,550,729 1,026,367
REEEFE Net current assets 362,566 302,973
BEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 577,624 528,701
JEREEE Non-current liabilities
HE&E Lease liabilities 14 466 909
FEE Net assets 577,158 527,792
HEE Total funds 15 577,158 527,792
AENBN 2022 F7 A 27 BOENFFAIR S -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 July 2022.
HER EEk
Lin Sun Mo, Willy Patrick Wong Chi Kwong
FE BIEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman

YENR BUREMBSRUBHRS
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

# 2 2022 &£ 3 H 31 HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2022

BEREENR
Attributable to the Council
&% JEfERR
gihs KA BRER
Capital =T BERR Non- B
subvention Revenue Exchange k) controlling Total
fund reserve reserve Total interests funds
BRI BETT BETT BETT BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20204 4 B 1 BAVERR At 1 April 2020 11219 367,068 800 480,064 1699 481,763
FARR Surplus for the year - 65,645 - 65,645 (137) 65,508
FREMRELGE | Other comprehensive income for the year:
BETREBREENER =R Exchange difference on translation of - - 1434 1434 151 1,585
financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FRRHEUEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - 65,645 1434 67,079 14 67,093
EARENSEE (M 156) Movement in capital subvention fund (6,586) - - (6,586) - (6,586)
(note 15(a))
72021 %3 A 31 BROES At 31 March 2021 105610 432,713 2,234 540,557 1713 542,270
K021 4 B 1 B At1 April 2021 105,610 432,713 2,234 540,557 1,713 542,270
FRRER Surplus for the year = 59,584 = 59,584 209 59,793
FREMRELE | Other comprehensive income for the year:
HENRELBEENEREZE Exchange difference on translation of = - 921 921 84 1,005
financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FRRHEIEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - 59,584 921 60,505 293 60,798
EARENSEE (FiFE156) Movement in capital subvention fund (6,925) = = (6,925) = (6,925)
(note 15(a))
72022 % 3 A 31 BROEES At 31 March 2022 98,685 492,297 3,155 594,137 2,006 596,143

SENE BURBMBERMBRS
HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

#HZ 2022 F 3 B 31 HIEZEE Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
FiaE BETT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
WA Income
R SEEN BT & B Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 235,771 233,460
FRISUAN Service income 17 666,208 565,968
HfbA Other income 18 20,648 25,938
922,627 825,366
S Expenditure
B E5E Staff emoluments 19 (448,968) (395,591)
Hithz Other expenses 22 (420,621) (370,705)
fEIBIEER Surplus before tax 53,038 59,070
554 Income tax expense 23(a) (170) (148)
52,868 58,922
REXEHSEAN Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 6,925 6,586
FRRER Surplus for the year 59,793 65,508
25 Attributable to:
AENR The Council 15(b) 59,584 65,645
FEE A R A Non-controlling interests 15(d) 209 (137)
59,793 65,508

SENE BIAIRBMBSREBRS
HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Surplus for the year 59,793 65,508
HitZ @i Other comprehensive income
AIREM A B ENRAEUCREN Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
Hith 2 EUER - income and expenditure account in subsequent periods:
BEhEE A RHFEZEREIR BAIE Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of 1,005 1,585
RER operations in the People’s Republic of China
FREMPEEBE (FHE) Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,005 1,585
FAZEULEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 60,798 67,093
BER - Attributable to:
EENB The Council 60,505 67,079
FEER R R A Non-controlling interests 293 14
60,798 67,093

SENE BURBMBERMBRS
HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

#HZ 2022 F 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
FaE BETT AT IT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
A Income
R SEENI BT & B Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 235,771 233,460
BRISUAN Service income 17 633,746 543,528
HfbA Other income 18 20,280 25,565
889,797 802,553
= Expenditure
iEdSEies Staff emoluments 19 (440,548) (387,249)
Hithsz Other expenses 22 (399,883) (358,574)
fRT B R AR Surplus before tax 49,366 56,730
Frfg#t Income tax expense 23(a) = -
49,366 56,730
WEKRKESEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 6,925 6,586
FARGBREEUIE Surplus and total comprehensive income for 15(b) 56,291 63,316
the year
10 SENBE BUREMBRSREHERS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
& BT BIETIT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BETBEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
RIERIRER Surplus before tax 53,038 59,070
FARIE - Adjustments for:
FlEWA Interest income 18 (817) (1,878)
HEaEzAE Interest on lease liabilities 22 44 69
M ~ BREMRBNEESE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22 114 596
e Depreciation 22 41,480 43,758
s Amortisation 22 4,594 4,948
Bty Provision for expected credit losses 9(c) 1,212 122
EEELESIRZERE Operating surplus before working capital
changes 99,665 106,685
FEWERFR S EARENE ERA /(3800)  Decrease / (increase) in accounts receivable and
other current assets 31,946 (66,712)
ZRIBESIEHN Increase in restricted cash (451,926) (452,668)
FER BRI R E MR BN B &GN Increase in accounts payable and other current
liabilities 527,222 479,499
REEFENRS Cash generated from operations 206,907 66,804
BT ZEFTER PRC corporate income tax paid 23(0) (228) (56)
EEFEHEENIREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 206,679 66,748
BREZBEENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
[=AlgIES Interest received 817 1,878
FE=EALI EEEBER Increase in fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months when placed (321,428) (399,913)
= BRI EEEERE RS RIR Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with
original maturities over 3 months when placed 337,590 363,308
HEMZE - BEMRAEFTERIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 786 9
BEWZE - BEMNRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30,609) (33,337)
EBERPEE Purchase of intangible assets (5,690) (5,551)
BRETHEANRERETF Net cash flows used in investing activities (18,534) (73,606)
MEZHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
EBREEaE Lease payments 14 (565) (555)
HEREMERANIRESREFEE Net cash used in financing activities (565) (555)
R NIRSSEYILI /(R4 ) 7388 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 187,580 (7,413)
R MRESSEWIRINREE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 66,095 72430
EXEBNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 853 1,078
IE@&IE@%{E%,E_HEEE%@E Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 254,528 66,095
HYENRE BAREMESRBERS 11
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE 2022 % 3 B 31 HIEERE Year ended 31 March 2022

1. SENBRMEEER

BEBEENRER ( "TEENR. ) R—RBUTERH%
% R 1967 FRE (BBEENDRERKH) BRIz -
AEN RN E RN E B AL MBI AT B EE
EE 78 SRAEEDKIE -

LENRIEWBAR (4% S8, ) NERXEE
RERSEEN  BEARUMFNAER - WimEFHE%
WERED ~ HESEA - REEERSABIAEL
BRI -

MBAREN
EEADRRBATNFENT

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance. The address of its registered office and principal place of
operation is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more efficient utilisation
of resources, and to advise measures designed to increase productivity via development
or dissemination of programmes, methods or techniques for the business sectors in Hong
Kong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries are as follows:

& EEM IR, BHEITR SEER HREE HItE EEXRH
Name EEME BHEEX i NEHE ABFE  Principal
Place of Particulars Group's Held Heldby activities
incorporation of issued and effective by the subsidiaries
and operation paid up capital interest Council
EENIRE B 5 10,000 7T 100% 100% -  AEBLEEHRERZE
(%) BRATE Hong Kong HK$10,000 MIEE KRR R

HKPC Technology (Holdings)
Company Limited

LEN B
(#Z8) BRAR Hong Kong
Productivity

(Holdings) Limited

AEN (RR) FREY
HABRAT PRC
Productivity (Dongguan)

Consulting Co. Ltd.

AEHD ORI FRER
HHABRAT PRC
Productivity (Shenzhen)

Consulting Co. Ltd.

FIRBEEN A
A ARAT PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity
Foundation Co. Ltd.

RYRBLEED FE
FthIE O PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK
Productivity Foundation
Training Institute

YENR BUREMBSRUBHRS

Commercialisation
of patents project
deliverables of HKPC

FBIE 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - HEEK
HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
i 5,000,000 TT 100% - 100% AR R 3EHIBRIE
HK$5,000,000 Consultancy and

training services

i 1,610,000 T 100% - 100%  EEREEEETIARTS
HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and

training services

AR 1,540,000 7T 64.94% - 64.94%  [ERRSIEHIARFS
RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and

training services

AR 50,000 7T 64.94% - 1000  FEHIARIE
RMB50,000 Training services

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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SITC IR 3% -

2. ERATEMEHREER (TEHEHBER
E#H )
(@) FERIFEIRIESTEBRFHRE £
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BRTE RS XER -

BERMBREERE 1658 (B
EEN)

2019 AR 2021
F6H30B2%E
HIEBEITH SR

BBV REERE O - BE FIREENE K
SEMERIZE 39 57 BB -

MR 7 57~ BB IS
HHERIE 4 S RBBUBRE
AERIZE 16 57 (1BETA)

RH LA E] MBI B R B S ERINEENA E
NRME - EBRN LS BRI ESEAMBHE -

RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2022 F 3 B 31 HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2022

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Agreement related to Hong Kong Industrial Artificial Intelligence and
Robotics Centre Limited (“FLAIR")

FLAIR was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee with the Council as the sole
member. FLAIR aims to develop innovative solutions on artificial intelligence and robotics
technologies to facilitate the intelligent manufacturing for Hong Kong enterprises.

Although the Council is the sole member of FLAIR, the Council has not consolidated the
results of FLAIR since under the terms of the agreement entered into with the Government,
the Council is not exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable
returns from its involvement with FLAIR.

Hong Kong Productivity Council Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Centre
(Futian) (“SITC")

SITC was formed as an institution with the Council as one of the founders of SITC. SITC aims
to provide non-profit making public services relating to the application of innovation and
technology and support the development of the Greater Bay Area.

According to the relevant law and regulations of the People’s Republic of China, an
institution has no shareholders or members, accordingly no profits can be distributed to
the Council. As the Council is not exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power
to affect variable returns from its involvement with SITC, the Council has not consolidated
the results of SITC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@)  Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

The adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs does not have any material impact on
the Group's or Council’s results of operations and financial positions nor any substantial
changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

SENR BIAKHEMBESREBRS
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKAS 41 and
lllustrative Examples Accompanying HKFRS 16'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group performed a preliminary assessment
on the impact of the adoption of these issued but not yet effective HKFRSs, and expected
no significant impact to the Group's results of operations and financial position upon
adoption.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance.

(b)  Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Notes to the Financial Statements

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Council and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Council. Control is achieved when the Council has power over the investee, is exposed or
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income and expenditure account. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to the income and expenditure account or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

In the Council's statement of financial position, investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost
less impairment losses.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary's
net identifiable assets.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)  Non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the Council. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
and expenditure account and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the Council. Changes in the Group's interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated total funds to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

(b)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building ("HKPC Building") 50 years
Leasehold improvements

- Office 10 years
- Non-office 3 years

Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the income and expenditure account on
the date of retirement or disposal.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software costs are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software and
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation of computer software is charged to the income and
expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 3
years.

(d) Leases

The Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Notes to the Financial Statements

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

4., SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)  Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (which comprises the initial measurement
of lease liabilities, initial direct costs, reinstatement costs, any payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received), and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payments made.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e,, leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and low value leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as expenses in the income
and expenditure account.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income is recognised in the income and expenditure account on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(e) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, which includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the investee;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the investee;

- it becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the investee; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the investee
below its cost.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities (continued)

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including those recognised using the
equity method), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 4(e)(iii).

(i) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") for all debt instruments
stated at cost or amortised cost. ECL are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECL. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
The Group has established an allowance matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22
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Notes to the Financial Statements

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows independently of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(f)  Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(g)  Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of original maturities when placed.

()  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an expense in
the income and expenditure account when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the income and expenditure account except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial
recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

) Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income and
expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in the income
and expenditure account as follows:

(i) Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in the income
and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with them and that the subventions will be received.
Government subventions that compensate the Group for expenditure incurred are
recognised as income in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenditure are incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent
activities arising in the financial year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit
as agreed with the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("the
Government"). Amount in excess of the limit will be returned to the Government in the
following financial year.

(i)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

(iij)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. The input
method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative
to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services. Where the criteria for over-time
recognition are not met, service income is recognised at a point in time when control of
the service is transferred to the customer.

SENR BIAKHEMBESREBRS

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22

21



RAFEERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE 2022 % 3 B 31 HIEERE Year ended 31 March 2022

4. FETIHECREE (&)

(m) BHEE

ANEEDHMIE RS BB &Rz ARE mUER
B BER o MAEENE P A RERZEIEIERAD -
BB R R CERBANEE -

n) BHEE

BREERTEERCRAFTFBINE (SINEFRES
) MERZFFPFERERIRBER - HEFRA
SERERIRBEL TESANRE - AIRERY
FEREHNTE (UBREERE) BRSNEE - 51
BERAEEETENRRERBUA -

(0 EFIMA

BREFEEE WX BEAREURETVEEERNLN
BRASN - i a T 2GRN AIRETERP GME
ECBRATETEEER

()  BRAHESWNEREAES AN ANERR

(i) BARBEEELNREAERMZERHRBER
RBITENEE -

(i) BRATEEARI TG -

BAER AN BAREE ERRE WA EREN—
REFACEEBIE RIS R RINR - Bt SA AR E
ARFBIERASZ ©

(p) SMNBIRE

BRAMMNERBRE A TFHINEERGE - DUNERE
VB S E RS ERRREHRANINEERRE -
PEE 50 R IS TE UGS iR B O BERR, ©

DRSS ARTEMINEIFEEEREERERZ AN
HMNEERERINE

ERRINSENFEIZ AR5 B INBERRERER
BB R o MBI RIR B AR SR BROINEE
RIGE B - FTEEER A REREHM DR
WHFERANREREET -

EHETBIRIMEER - B TR EZ A BIR
HEEAENRFEREZRSEDANBCIRE NHE

7

e °

YENR BUREMBSRUBHRS

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(n)  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

(o) Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and equipment,
or intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group
can specifically identify.

(i) The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future.

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which
the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

(p)  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchanges rates ruling at the reporting
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated to Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rate at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in reserve which relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve
to the income and expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22



_______________________________________________________
RATSERERHIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

4. EEEHBUREE (&) 4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@ EAXEBR (q) Capital subvention fund

LRIFEEEEANENAEEHBENEDEECER The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate the Group
ESRBEEEN BERERTBREH - for the costs of the subvented assets is recognised in the income and expenditure account

over the useful lives of the subvented assets.

n FERAZL () Related parties
@ WEALTBUTEH @ A ALTSRERBEARSE (@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that
BEEE person:
0) edsi it EIEEIEE 0) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i HEBBEAZEN X (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) REENBERESEAS - (i) isa member of key management personnel of the Group.
()  HATEAGREER AEEREAEETEE (b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:
(i) ZEREAAER AR —SEENKE - 0) The entity and the Group are members of the same group.
(i) HE-EEAS—EEMNEBESATHSE D (ih) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
X (X —EERENBEANTHEE or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
*¥ MB—ERTREE) ° member).
(i) EBEREEEBER =AM ERE - (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
vy HAE—REBERF-SEEMNaERE (iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
ME—EBRBRRE=FEBNHEAT - associate of the third entity.
v) ZEBRIDAANEENEAEEGHESEE (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
MEERA MRNEERIE R E - employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.
Vi) ZEERTE () YR ALt REE (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
il o
(i) AZE () BFIBAATEZEREEEARY (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
’ijjﬁ%;zggg (HZEBREAT) NWE member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
BEBAS ° entity).
(i) ZEBIEMBEENTAKEAR MK (viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
SEREFEZEEASRE © management personnel services to the Group.
—RATRELRATE N LR ERAETR IR RN Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
BZRNTHAZHEEENTRENE - HPBEHE to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
() ZBATWNFLEEEHRBHE () thatperson’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) ZBALTEBHEFREEANT K (i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(il  ZBRATHEEBIEBHEHZIEEA - (i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
SENE BUZHMBSERUBRS 23
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are described below.

Estimate of revenue and costs of work

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises its
service income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of HKFRS 15
or at a point in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the customer. For
service income recognised over time, the Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue and contract costs prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted service income is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted service costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of
materials are prepared by experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortised
cost is an area that requires significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour.

Significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring expected credit loss, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected
credit losses.

Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost and credit loss expenses in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2022

=
The Group
HEETF REARE
£ ENKE HETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and HWER
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R2021E481H At 1 April 2021 267,854 116,953 254,365 639,172
NE Additions - 12,392 18,217 30,609
HE Disposals - (3,424) (6,834) (10,258)
BRERE Exchange adjustments - 40 86 126
R202FE 3831 H At 31 March 2022 267,854 125,961 265,834 659,649
RETINE : Accumulated depreciation
R2021E481H At 1 April 2021 164,465 77,318 199,403 441,186
FERE Charge for the year 5,346 15,050 20,570 40,966
M E#E o] Written back on disposals - (2,744) (6,614) (9,358)
RETAE Exchange adjustments - 40 62 102
R2022F 3831 H At 31 March 2022 169,811 89,664 213,421 472,896
AREHE - Net book value
7202243 831 H At 31 March 2022 98,043 36,297 52,413 186,753
2021 €3 H31H 31 March 2021
£=
The Group
HERF EIEVSE'S
EEDKIE HEI1R Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and “ars
Building improvements equipment Total
BT HEBFIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R20200F 481 H At 1 April 2020 267,854 105,315 243,564 616,733
NE Additions - 11,716 21,621 33,337
HE Disposals - (151) (11,084) (11,235)
ERAREE Reclassified from intangible assets - - 108 108
BERE Exchange adjustments - 73 156 229
202143 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 267,854 116,953 254,365 639,172
REHIRE : Accumulated depreciation
R2020%F 481 H At 1 April 2020 159,120 58,247 191,023 408,390
FEFE Charge for the year 5,345 19,149 18,755 43,249
HERE (o] Written back on disposals - (151) (10,479) (10,630)
ERERTEE Reclassified from intangible assets - - 5 5
BERE Exchange adjustments - 73 99 172
202193 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 164,465 77,318 199,403 441,186
AREFEE Net book value
72021 43 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 103,389 39,635 54,962 197,986
HYENRE BAREMESRBERS 25
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2022

XENB
The Council
HEETF REARE
£ ENKE HETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and HWER
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
no221E481H At 1 April 2021 267,854 116,084 252,503 636,441
NE Additions - 12,392 17,944 30,336
HE Disposals - (3,424) (6,837) (10,261)
R2022®E3831H At 31 March 2022 267,854 125,052 263,610 656,516
REHAE - Accumulated depreciation
R2021E481H At 1 April 2021 164,465 76,450 198,152 439,067
FEEFE Charge for the year 5,346 15,050 20,381 40,777
H E (o] Written back on disposals - (2,744) (6,614) (9,358)
R202®E 3831 H At 31 March 2022 169,811 88,756 211,919 470,486
IRERE : Net book value
R2022%F3H31H At 31 March 2022 98,043 36,296 51,691 186,030
2021 £3H31H 31 March 2021
ENB
The Council
HEBF BIERZEE
EENKIE RETR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and “axs
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BIETIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R2020%F 481 H At 1 April 2020 267,854 104,519 241,855 614,228
PN= Additions - 11,716 21,554 33,270
HE Disposals - (151) (11,014) (11,165)
ERaRrEE Reclassified from intangible assets - - 108 108
R 20213 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 267,854 116,084 252,503 636,441
REHIAE : Accumulated depreciation
R2020F 481 H At 1 April 2020 159,120 57,452 190,033 406,605
FERE Charge for the year 5,345 19,149 18,531 43,025
HER [T Written back on disposals - (151) (10,417) (10,568)
ERaRrEE Reclassified from intangible assets - - 5 5
72021 43 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 164,465 76,450 198,152 439,067
AREFE - Net book value
R2021E3 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 103,389 39,634 54,351 197,374
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2022

£H E£ENR
The Group The Council
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
Ro221E481H At 1 April 2021 53,817 53,693
NE Additions 5,690 5,681
BERE Exchange adjustments 5 -
R2022%F 3831 H At 31 March 2022 59,512 59,374
FEHE - Accumulated amortisation
Ro221E481H At 1 April 2021 45,422 45,331
FEEE Amortisation for the year 4,594 4,584
BERE Exchange adjustments 4 -
7202243 A 31 H At 31 March 2022 50,020 49,915
EREFRE - Net book value
R2022F3831H At 31 March 2022 9,492 9,459
2021 €3 H31H 31 March 2021
£H HENR
The Group The Council
BIETIT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R20200F 481 H At 1 April 2020 48,364 48,250
NE Additions 5,551 5,551
EREE - BENRE Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (108) (108)
BERE Exchange adjustments 10 -
2021 E3 831 H At 31 March 2021 53,817 53,693
Rt - Accumulated amortisation
R2020F 481 H At 1 April 2020 40,473 40,403
FEHE Amortisation for the year 4948 4,933
EREIE - BRENRE Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (5) (5)
BEFE Exchange adjustments 6 -
R2021 3831 H At 31 March 2021 45,422 45,331
BRERE - Net book value
R2021E3 A 31 H At 31 March 2021 8,395 8,362
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8. MIMBARMKRE 8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
$ENB
The Council
2022 2021
BT EETIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
ELEHRRMD  mEAEFE Unlisted shares, at cost 20,010 20,010
T OREEE Less: Impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
W38 31 H At 31 March 18,722 18,722
L ENBNBARBEARREHRNFISENBRENW Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries as at the reporting date are disclosed in note 1.
&1 R LUKEE o
9. EWERIMEEMRSEE 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
55 £ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT EETIT BT AEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWERTR Accounts receivable 23,447 16,062 23,447 15,710
BREE (K5t a) Contract assets (note a) 85,514 132,430 85,504 132,410
TENFRIE Prepayments 25,891 24611 23,015 23,346
BRI (5T b) Contract costs (note b) 50,904 49,544 50,904 49,544
REMEMEKIE Deposits and other receivables 45,499 40,450 44,205 39,678
231,255 263,097 227,075 260,688
B BE (B o Less: Impairment (note c) (1,549) (337) (1,549) 277)
229,706 262,760 225,526 260,411
(@) B/HEE (@) Contract assets
®H
The Group
2022 2021
BT BT IT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EBREEEEN Contract assets arising from
RERI AR TS Consultancy 83,706 121,160
23 Training 983 12
RIS IRIRFS Manufacturing support 825 11,258
BREELRE Total contract assets 85,514 132,430
28 SENBE BUREMBRSREHERS
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9. ERERMRREMBEBEE (&) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(continued)
@ BHNEE () (@)  Contract assets (continued)
£ENB
The Council
2022 2021
BT T AETIT
HK$'000 HK$’000
BREEREERN Contract assets arising from
EERI AR TS Consultancy 83,696 121,140
=3 Training 983 12
BUEET BRI Manufacturing support 825 11,258
BHRIEERAR Total contract assets 85,504 132,410
BREEZANST SRR » 353 ®RiEEX Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from consultancy, training,
EBRTS  $HETIYMESNEES NEREFTHEEUZ W manufacturing support, publications and advertising, and exhibitions and study mission
AR RWEUE R Ih TR BRI EIS AN - 5T services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
BEXNEFR  EREANEEZRAZ SRELEHD performance obligations. Upon completion of performance obligations, the amounts
fEAERERIR - recognised as contract assets are reclassified to accounts receivable.
R HFET R EEREENRFEAT The expected timing of recovery of the contract assets at the reporting date is as follows:
=5
The Group
2022 2021
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 45,462 88,734
B_EEFREF 2-5 years 40,052 43,696
BREELRRE Total contract assets 85,514 132,430
£ENB
The Council
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$’000
—FRN Within one year 45,452 88,724
FFFEERLF 2-5 years 40,052 43,686
BHREELRRE Total contract assets 85,504 132,410
HEINR BIAKEMBERUZERS 29
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9. RBEWERMREMRBEE (4) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(continued)

(b) EFIALA (b)  Contract costs

BARERZENRAEASERITSERBERNERN The capitalised contract costs are charged to the consolidated income and expenditure

BN RREREAERARANBMARREL - AL account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which

BUEERP - the related cost is recognised, when the Group satisfies performance obligations of

respective service contracts.

(0 FEWRIKRAENEERE ()  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
EBERA R EHNEETT RN BERBESNESE B RN The movements in the allowance for impairment of accounts receivable and contract
K assets are as follows:
=5
The Group
2022 2021
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
w481 H At 1 April 337 215
FFEE 0 Net increase 1,212 122
MW3A31H At 31 March 1,549 337
£ENB
The Council
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n4R81H At 1 April 277 215
SEIEN Net increase 1,272 62
MW3A31H At31 March 1,549 277
REATREENSRE A SRERREERSTEHE An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an allowance matrix
EEEMET - BEXDIBREEAMUSEERERNZARE to measure expected credit losses. The allowance rates are based on days past due for
FPHRIZBRSERE (40 BEAERMTR) ° &5 groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type
BERWEENEER - SRSBENENREBETE and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
BEBBESRMN - BN MR KEBEAR D TER 2 &3 of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting
BERIENER - —RME @ KRB HEA— 4 date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
BRBEREFZHRAT UM Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not

subject to enforcement activity.
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9. EWERIREMARENEE (&) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 MBEWERIREHNEERE (&) () Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)
U858 B@AREE AR EE KRS EER RN Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the accounts receivable
Eh using an allowance matrix:
§H The Group
7 2022F3A31H At 31 March 2022
Past due
DR —FE ={@A8
1188 ={&ER8 Mk
ENER Less than 1to3 Over et
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
SELEISY={ GBS Expected credit loss rate 0.591% 2.518% 3.474% 10.596% 1.422%
EREARE (BT IT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 93,912 2,343 5,778 6,928 108,961
TEfifEERE (BT ) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 555 59 201 734 1,549
#2021 FE3H31H At 31 March 2021
Past due
AN —% =@A
18 A =f@A Pk
BNHA Less than 1t03 Over w5
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TREAEEEIEE Expected credit loss rate 0.099% 0.216% 2.442% 4175% 0.227%
IRMEARE (B%TT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 139,861 3,706 901 4,024 148,492
TEEAEEEE (BETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 139 8 22 168 337
YENRE BUIREMBEREHERS 31
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9. FEWRRFEHMREEE (&) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(continued)
(0 EUERFREGHNEERE (&) () Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)
SENB The Council
M2022F 3831 H At 31 March 2022
&g
Past due
D —F =fER
1188 ={&R ME
ENER Less than 1to3 Over Wt
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
AR EREX Expected credit loss rate 0.591% 2.518% 3.474% 10.596% 1.422%
BREARE (BT IT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 93,902 2,343 5,778 6,928 108,951
TEHEEEE (GBETIT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 555 59 201 734 1,549
2021 FE3HA31H At 31 March 2021
piand
Past due
AR —F =@A
18R =@A Dk
BNER Less than 1to03 Over FEHS
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEHAEEEEXR Expected credit loss rate 0.099% 0.234% 2.442% 2.725% 0.187%
IREARE (B%TIT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 139,841 3414 901 3,964 148,120
TEfAfEEEE (GBIETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 139 8 22 108 277
10. IRE 8RS R EHITESL 10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS
-] $ENE
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BEETIT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=B R EZIEMNERR TR Fixed deposits with original maturities over
3 months when placed 167,515 183,362 160,237 176,481
RITEFMNES Cash at banks and on hand 1,547,655 907,296 1,526,256 891,638

B ERANIRE ~ $R1TE5M  Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits in

EHFEF AR the statement of financial position 1,715,170 1,090,658 1,686,493 1,068,119
ZRIZS Restricted cash (1,293,127) (841,201) (1,293,127) (841,201)
=B R EEIEMNERR R Fixed deposits with original maturities over

3 months when placed (167,515) (183,362) (160,237) (176,481)
RERSRERANRENIELE  Cash and cash equivalents in the
1B consolidated statement of cash flows 254,528 66,095 233,129 50,437
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10. RE - WITFERREHER (&) 10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS (continued)
R2022F 3 831 B £ENDBNEENHETERTHN Cash at banks of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2022 included HK$1,293,127,000
BT 1,293,127,000 (2021 £ * AT 841,201,000 ) FHAE (2021: HK$841,201,000) which were placed in separate project bank accounts and restricted for
ARIEERITIRF BERANEBEESTEIEEN the purpose of projects governed by respective Government funding schemes. Any unspent
HE - IBETHAEIEB B LR REBFIEERE funding, together with the interest income generated in project bank accounts, is returned to
BIRITERF EAE R S —HREBUT - the Government upon completion of the project or termination of the project agreement.
202438310 SENBITEREBERERETH Cash at banks of the Group as at 31 March 2022 included HK$26,434,000 (2021:
AR 1T Y FR I8 A 7 T 26,434,000 (2021 4 & T HK$20,378,000) which were placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is
20,378000) @ AEGEANWERFESPEBFFEEN subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
SMNEZEBIRBIANEAREE - PRC government.
1. EMARFREMRESRE 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
®E $ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT T AETIT BT AMETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FESIRER Trade payables 73,003 45,759 72,412 44,820
aalE (Wata) Contract liabilities (note a) 269,783 258,218 265,328 257,315
TAUWGRIR - BUTRERES Receipts in advance - Government
disbursement funds 1,085,736 628,043 1,085,736 628,043
FlrEERE (HEb) Provision for annual leave compensation
(note b) 9,140 7,962 9,140 7,962
FERHE B R HANE TR Accruals and other payables 107,088 77,264 105,646 75,878
1,544,750 1,017,246 1,538,262 1,014,018
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1. EARFREMRERE (&) 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(continued)
@ &BiaE (@) Contract liabilities
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BET T BT IT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAWR P 2 HASRIE Short-term advances received from
customers
EERI AR5 — Consultancy 260,356 252452 255,901 251,549
£l ~Training 5,674 1,807 5,674 1,807
BUSEETIRIRES — Manufacturing support 3,753 3,959 3,753 3,959
BREERARE Total contract liabilities 269,783 258218 265,328 257315
(b) FERHHEEEE (b)  Provision for annual leave compensation
EEMEENR
The Group and the Council
2022 2021
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R4B1H At 1 April 7,962 6,844
ATIB A Provision made 16,436 15,523
CERERE Utilised in the year (15,258) (14,405)
Mm3B831H At 31 March 9,140 7,962
1B (BEKR)Y - REBmn—ENEETEZEEEAL TR Under the Employment Ordinance, staff members who have completed a full year of
FR (BERERARATEBE) » BTt RERBEET services are entitled to take at least seven days of leave (including Sundays and Public
HEN\BEANELEHY - T EEZR - B =F Holidays) consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member who leaves his or her
FREES - BRI UEY S BREVB A {F B A E R & I E employment is entitled to annual leave compensation. She/He is entitled to receive in
MIREFHIE - FREERBEAREEITREHRE K E cash the annual leave pay earned but not utilised. Provision is made for the employees'
FEBAIRREMRTEE © untaken annual leave balances at the reporting date.
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# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

12. AMOUNTS DUE FROM /TO SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

@ &HE (@) The Group
WAERE HEME
Office Leased Bz
equipment properties Total
BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
72020481 H At 1 April 2020 1,694 177 1,871
FEITE Depreciation for the year (424) (85) (509)
MERE Exchange adjustments - 12 12
2021 FE3 A3 HE At 31 March 2021 and
221481 H 1 April 2021 1,270 104 1,374
FENE Depreciation for the year (423) () (514)
HRERE Exchange adjustments - 1 1
720223 31 H At 31 March 2022 847 14 861
b)) HEENB (b)  The Council
MAERRE
Office equipment
BETT
HK$'000
R2020F481H At 1 April 2020 1,694
FEINE Depreciation for the year (424)
M2021F3 A 31 HE At 31 March 2021 and
2021481 H 1 April 2021 1,270
FEWE Depreciation for the year (423)
7202243831 H At 31 March 2022 847
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14. HERE 14. LEASE LIABILITIES
®H £ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT EETIT BT AETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
R4aB1H At 1 April 1,445 1,919 1,332 1,734
FEZH (HEE22) Interest expense (note 22) 44 69 43 64
e Payments (565) (555) (466) (466)
HERE Exchange adjustments 3 12 = -
R3B31H At 31 March 927 1,445 909 1,332
BREIRRAVER ¢ Reconciliation to the statement of financial
position:
piEI=N Current liabilities 461 519 443 423
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 466 926 466 909
MW3A31H At 31 March 927 1445 909 1332
15. #HESE 15. TOTAL FUNDS
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BRI BT IT BRI AT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEXEDE (MG @) Capital subvention fund (note a) 98,685 105,610 98,685 105,610
WAE BB (FIEE (b)) Revenue reserve (note b) 492,297 432,713 478,473 422,182
590,982 538,323 577,158 527,792
BB (ME ©) Exchange reserve (note c) 3,155 2,234
594,137 540,557
JEEp R R R (FIEE () Non-controlling interests (note d) 2,006 1,713
596,143 542,270
@ EAEBSE (@) Capital subvention fund
KEMEEAR
The Group and the Council
2022 2021
BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
w481 H At 1 April 105,610 112,196
AW RS Transfer to income and expenditure account (6,925) (6,586)
Mm3B831H At 31 March 98,685 105,610
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15. #EE (&) 15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)
(b) UWIAEBNEER (b)  Revenue reserve
€5 $ENE
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT T AEETIT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hn4B1H At 1 April 432,713 367,068 422,182 358,866
FRRK Surplus for the year 59,584 65,645 56,291 63,316
M3A31H At 31 March 492,297 432,713 478,473 422,182

WABBEBRRT CHEBELEENRNRITTEN /
ESIRIMARAL ©

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group's and the Council's
accumulated surplus or deficit.

(0 BRERFEE () Exchange reserve
=0
The Group
2022 2021
BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
m4B1H At 1 April 2,234 800
BMENRESTERERNELER Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
operations in the PRC 921 1,434
M3B31H At 31 March 3,155 2,234

MERBEEERETBRENEBEYBREMELENAE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the

PEZELE o translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.
(d) FFIZRRAERAELS (d)  Non-controlling interests
KE
The Group
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
m481H At 1 April 1,713 1,699
e E Share of exchange reserve 84 151
FEBMLFE/ (B8) Share of surplus/(deficit) for the year 209 (137)
W3/ 31 H At 31 March 2,006 1,713
HENRE BIAKRYMBSRMBRS 37
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16. ERY4ESRIBFEED

FEHREEME

IR TERA ZE JIBTE 2009 £ 6 B 22 BEETH (1T
ZHESEY ( TESEL ) BB AENRAI
BIRFEEBNEEHPHEENSRREFERRE
o TMTEMSE  ZEEBEKERNMEEREENR
REBUBEFEEFRSNFEEBNEERBEEM 15% -
2021/2022 FEMNBFE B BIFAER A ZROAME
BRI KRR E S @B ABIT 0236 & (2020/2021
FE D BIL0213R) » WRIERIAFEREEM -
2021202 FEN BT EEZMB AT RBIT2122E

(20202021 € BT 212218) - £ENRCRES
FREEATFEMLUTFEL2 S AMESNBITESE
HHB -

202172022 FEAENRBRNBAHEB 2SN KEZIREN
BT EBIRAZIER (2020/2021 FEE : RE) -

17. BRIBUIA

16. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FOR RECURRENT ACTIVITIES

Annual block grant

In accordance with paragraph 8.1 of the Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement
("MAA") dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and the Council, the Council
is allowed to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At any one point
in time the level of accumulated savings from the Council's annual block grant shall
not exceed 15% of its annual block grant in the current financial year. The government
subvention for the year of 2021/22 includes the grant from Innovation and Technology
Fund for Automotive Platforms and Application Systems (APAS) R&D Centre of HK$23.6
million (2020/21: HK$21.3 million) which is not classified as annual block grant. The total
block grant of the Council for the year of 2021/22 was HK$212.2 million (2020/21: HK$212.2
million). The annual block grant from the Government in the current and prior years has
been fully expended by the Council in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2021/22 was entirely accounted for as
Government subvention income in the income and expenditure account (2020/21: same).

17. SERVICE INCOME

®E $ENR
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
N2 BT BT T BT BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KEEFEXISHA Revenue from contracts
with customers
AR RS -Consultancy 544,936 454,546 512,474 432,106
B3| -Training 25,304 13,706 25,304 13,706
RS ERIS -Manufacturing support 18,609 19,271 18,609 19,271
RESLERE -Exhibitions and study mission 2,144 2,242 2,144 2,242
BEEEEEEIER -Hong Kong Jockey Club funded  (a)
project 6,005 2,449 6,005 2,449
REEFERIZEWA Total revenue from contracts with (b)
customers 596,998 492,214 564,536 469,774
XK ERMAIRHTHNA Grant income
SR GENIE]LS] -Government funded projects 69,210 73,754 69,210 73,754
666,208 565,968 633,746 543,528
(@) ®BE20224£3A31HIEEE  FENREKWE (@)  Allocation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is for operating an

EEBEESRESEAESHEIT 5484851 (2020/21
FEBIT 4138616), AR IEBUFA B 4t
= B TEE RS A DERETE -

information technology consultancy service and capacity building programme for
non-governmental organisations and HK$5,484,851 (2020/21: HK$4,138,616) have
been received during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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17. BRFBUIA (&) 17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)
(b)  FERBUTARIRERE (b)  Timing of revenue recognition
KB EENR
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BT IT BT AIETIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PE—SE 2, At a point in time 154,396 135,890 154,396 135,890
VERsFEH#ERS Over time 442,602 356,324 410,140 333,884
REZPEHIZHEMA Total revenue from contracts with
customers 596,998 492,214 564,536 469,774
() TEERAAREHERRZIMADTE  EHNH (0 Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in contract
LT ASKEER liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
2022 2022
®E £ENB
The Group The Council
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERI RIS Consultancy 132,500 132,098
=3 Training 1,486 1,486
SUEETIRRE Manufacturing support 2,874 2,874
136,860 136,458
2021 2021
] £ENR
The Group The Council
BT B8
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR5 Consultancy 98,052 97,657
5l Training 1,049 1,049
BUEXE T IERS Manufacturing support 2,880 2,880
101,981 101,586
d) EHEE (d)  Performance obligations
ER—(EREEERNWAMNS @ BAEEETARG For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is satisfied
BRIEHSER - ERFEIERERNIANS @ BRAS(EHE upon delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the performance
ERERBNSEBEEMEN - —RIERERIBRIZER obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term advances are normally
P ZREATENRK - required before rendering the services.
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18. H{ttlgA 18. OTHER INCOME
£H E£ENR
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT T AT BT AETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHWA Rental income 3,389 1,552 3,389 1,552
FEWA Interest income 817 1,878 662 1,755
B Sundry income 7,491 11,723 7,278 11,473
BT Eh Government grants 8,951 10,785 8,951 10,785
20,648 25,938 20,280 25,565
19. BEEFHE 19. STAFF EMOLUMENTS
HE £ENR
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT T AT BT AETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e LUT EET Salaries and variable pay 392,264 337,098 383,844 328,756
K< Gratuities 3,581 1,960 3,581 1,960
HBEFTE ~ ERREAMMER Overtime, subsistence and other allowances 14,892 13,703 14,892 13,703
BESRA — REMFETE Pension costs - defined contribution plans 30,207 33,081 30,207 33,081
BEREAEE Medical benefits scheme 8,024 9,749 8,024 9,749
448,968 395,591 440,548 387,249
fx Eaioh - 18 B 32 B % JT 28,444,000 (2021 £F * BT In addition to the above, staff costs amounting to HK$28,444,000 (2021: HK$26,865,000)
26,865000) Bt AEBLKAEENRIBEEHEBL L - have been charged to project related expenses of the Group and the Council.
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20. SIREIEA B IR

BREE ASREREEREENRREREATUERAY
FH (G R BYRANAESHER) BB T

20. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits-in-kind and provident fund
contributions) received by the senior management for their services rendered to the Group
and the Council are listed as follows:

SEREENR
The Group and the Council

2022 2021
BT AEBFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE 0 A8F Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director 4,735 4446
RS - BRI Lawrence Cheung, Chief Innovation Officer 3,546 3,396
RO BREIGAR Edmond Lai, Chief Digital Officer 3,391 3,286
WEE > EREERE Vivian Lin, Chief Operating Officer 2,985 234
14,657 11,362

21. EENRIEEE XS BIEN 21.

NER - £AENRERLEMBEE RS EHERE
ENRBIRANRBEEEMFHFM (2021 F:F) -

22, HihkH

22, OTHER EXPENSES

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2021: Nil).

During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive any

58 £ENR
The Group The Council

2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—MRRATBEE General and administrative expenses 45,071 47,588 44,231 45854
THE MR Project related expenses 312,985 259,202 294,332 249,881

HEYE - MEMRIEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 114 596 114 590

e Depreciation

-z~ BN - property, plant and equipment 40,966 43,249 40,777 43,026
-FRAREE - right-of-use assets 514 509 423 404
R E R Amortisation of intangible assets 4,594 4,948 4,584 4,933
HEaEFE Interest expense on lease liabilities 44 69 43 64
Gl Auditor's remuneration 1,283 1,084 673 583
HMIaY H Sundry expenses 15,050 13,460 14,706 13,219
420,621 370,705 399,883 358,574
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23. FhiEM 23. INCOME TAX
@ EWSZEREMREIMERE - (@) Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure account
represents:
-5
The Group

2022 2021

BT BT IT

HK$'000 HK$’000

RE - EELISMEE RS Current tax — outside Hong Kong Provision for the year 170 148

HREENDRERBRREEE (RBERE) %87 &
RRMANFTASERIE - FILBRGMEBREH -

The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been granted
exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department under Section 87
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

HAREENRNESHNBATNEZE 202243 A 31
HEERNEEREREZN » SOEELEEBRNE/RBE made as they did not have assessable profit during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
(2021 £ 4 Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council's Hong Kong subsidiaries has been

L ENDBHTE AU KB AT R R 25% (2021 £F - Taxation for the Council's Mainland subsidiaries is charged at 25% (2021: 25%).

42

25%) °
(b) MHFBZHEFETREFLUERREMELAE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at
R : applicable tax rates:
®E
The Group
2022 2021
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRBLRIEER Surplus before taxation 53,038 59,070
ZEBERAEEERERRX Notional tax on surplus before taxation,

STERE IR R2ERIE calculated at rates applicable in the jurisdictions concerned 8,300 9,506
BRI AR IE S £ Tax effect of non-taxable income (146,843) (132,552)
RAE L HRi e &8 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 138,713 123,194
BEHRIESH Income tax expense 170 148

SENE BIAIRBMBSREBRS
HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22



23. Ff§#M (&)

(€ #FEMBIRRRENTRIZES)

RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2022 F 3 B 31 HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2022

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

() Movement in tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial

position:
®E
The Group
2022 2021
BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W48 1H At 1 April 212 120
FERE Provision for the year 170 148
ETHI R DZEFTER PRC corporate income tax paid (228) (56)
HhERR Exchange adjustments 8 _
W3 A31H At 31 March 162 212
PRI RS Representing:
®E
The Group
2022 2021
BT BT IT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
ANR[ERIR Tax refundable - Q)
FERNRLIE Tax payable 162 214
W3 A31H At 31 March 162 212

(d) SEHEMIAEEHERME:

EHREHR  EEBRIBEEELQABIT 1,547,000 (2021
1 BIT 1,666000) AIAEERINZS R R EIENNE
NTMIARRERHFNE - SEER A - ARKERER
BH BHARRERHA AT AR RIS &8 - FTRURSt
HWZREBERARELHIBEEE - A A/ERNRIERS
1B (SEFRERMHEA RSN A AEEINHRIEEER
4h) ATHERRHEA A EIEI A IR ESE A B AR AIRIR
FERRLFE - PR E A B EIRY A A (EIEIORIE
E5i8 /7T 312,000 (2021 4F & T 462,000) , #1EHR
FERNEIHE -

EEEMN 2022 F 3 A 31 2021 F£3 B 31 AT
BRNENELHIEEE -

(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$ 1,547,000
(2021: HKS$1,666,000) that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these tax losses as, in the opinion of the management, it is uncertain whether
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Unused tax losses (except those related to a subsidiary in Mainland) can be carried forward
without time limit. The subsidiary in Mainland has unused tax losses of HK$312,000 (2021:
HK$462,000) which will expire in five years.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31 March 2022
and 2021.
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24, 7RiE 24. COMMITMENTS
EHRER  MARREEVERERABRENERFKEN Capital commitments outstanding at the reporting date not provided for in the
™ consolidated financial statements were as follows:
KEREENR
The Group and the Council
2022 2021
BT EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEL) Contracted for 24,396 6,367
25. BRERIBISTHIEMIA 25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
HERSH @ FEJSR T EMNKRESEENT The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the reporting date are
as follows:
TEhEE Financial assets
®H £ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT AETIT BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
LUSERRE AT EN B E Financial assets at amortised cost
BFEEEWER A M EATREIEE  Financial assets included in accounts
(Bt 9) receivable and other current assets
(note 9) 118,301 105,719 117,007 104,655
Re ~ BRITEANERER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits
(Fg&E 10) (note 10) 1,715,170 1,090,658 1,686,493 1,068,119
FEW KBTI FIE Amounts due from subsidiaries = - 1,276 810
1,833,471 1,196,377 1,804,776 1,173,584
SEIARE Financial liabilities
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BT IT BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IVR: 15307 S p- {0k =T Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BEARMEREANEMTEIEE  Finandal liabilities included in accounts
(BesE11) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 1,265,827 751,066 1,263,794 748,741
HEEE (MzE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 927 1,445 9209 1332
FENHIBARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries = - 12,024 11,926
1,266,754 752,511 1,276,727 761,999
44 SENBE BUREMBRSREHERS

HKP C INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021-22



26. ERIRAEEERAREE

SEEEREEBRISELFE  RBESR  FIEXK
NSRS - BLR R RIRBEBNY EEEECR KR
ILIEIE - BESIT

(@) {SEER

EEMEERREIZRABITENR  EHREHR - aNE
ENEYERR - ERECHIEEERR  WHEREEE
EERBEE -

K 2022 FF 3 5 31 HA1 2021 2 3 A 31 HHIES
B R AT IEER

TNREFI 2022 F3 B 31 BRI 2021 £3 A 31 BER
AEBNEERERNEEEZAEREERR (FBE
PAEER, RIFEEMEN A EEANHALER A
BANBRTER) RELEERDE -

S
2022%F3H831H

RAFSERaRbIAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

# 2 2022 &£ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2022

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest-rate and currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below:

(@)  Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances, fixed deposits, contract
assets and accounts receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2022 and 2021

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The Group

As at 31 March 2022

+Z@AR
TREBISEESIR

Exposure to 12-

month expected 2 HITRHAIS B RS
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
e ri%
551 PEER 58 2 PEER 55 3 BEER Simplified FLEE]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BETIT BT T BIETIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PEUSER K * Accounts receivable* - - - 23,447 23,447
BNEE Contract assets - - - 85,514 85,514
FFASREEN Financial assets included in
ﬁéf’(ﬂ‘/ﬁ@]ﬁ% other current assets
—IEE = — Normal** 96,403 - - - 96,403
"e - RITERMK Cash, bank balances,
EBRE and fixed deposits
— HARBEH — Not yet past due 1,715,170 - - 1,715,170
1,811,573 - - 108,961 1,920,534
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26. THEREERAREE (B) 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

@ EEREK (&) (@)  Credit risk (continued)

£E The Group

#2021 F3H31H As at 31 March 2021

+ZM@8
FREREERSE
Exposure to 12-
month expected 2 HIFEHR(EEHEIR
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
L&
551 FEER 58 2 PEER 8% 3 PEEX Simplified L]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BETIT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEWLERFR * Accounts receivable* - - - 16,062 16,062

BREE Contract assets - - - 132,430 132,430

STASREENEMTE Financial assets included in

EE other current assets
—E®E* - Normal** 89,994 - - - 89,994
R~ WITERREH Cash, bank balances, and fixed
IEZ5N deposits
— HAREH - Not yet past due 1,090,658 - - - 1,090,658
1,180,652 - - 148,492 1,329,144

* AEBERBES(ENEKERIRMS » DUIBHE * For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
BlEAERINER NI IS HRERMET o HEE - impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

i EHASREENEMASEEN MA A EE ** The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to
HERZESHEEBUBERLIENEERE K be "normal" when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
BLEFAR  ZEEENEEBEREA "TEE, - financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

BE 20243831 HILEE  EEAAKEEHIERER As at 31 March 2022, 50% (2021: 53%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the

AL FEWBE SRAAZEHY 50% (2021 £F © 53% ) o Group's five largest customers.

BE202F3831 HILFE  EEAAREEHNESHNE As at 31 March 2022, 70% (2021: 72%) of the total contract assets related to the Group's five

BB EELRZER 70% (2021 F 1 72%) o largest customers.

BREBREERENE—FSTEHEDT » FIRPRHEE9 - Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising are

setoutin note 9.
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26. TRIAEEERAREE (&) 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

@ EEEE (&) @)
4+EHB

Credit risk (continued)
The Council

202253 AH31H As at 31 March 2022

+Z@ER8
FRHRIEEESIR
Exposure to 12-
month expected 2 HIFEER(EEHEIR
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
L&
51 P& 5% 2 PEER 55 3 PEER Simplified 1wz
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT I BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWUERFR * Accounts receivable* - - - 23,447 23,447
BREE Contract assets - - - 85,504 85,504
SASBMEEMEMAS  Financial assets included in
EiE other current assets
—IEE = - Normal** 95,109 - - - 95,109
W&~ RITHEANTER Cash, bank balances, and fixed
FR deposits
— HAREH — Not yet past due 1,686,493 - - - 1,686,493
1,781,602 - - 108,951 1,890,553
72021 F3H831H As at 31 March 2021
+=@8
FRHAEE S8
Exposure to 12-
month expected ZHITRER(EEEIE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
ftraiE
58 1 PEER 58 2 PEER 55 3 PEEY Simplified L]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT BT BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PEUER K * Accounts receivable* - - - 15,710 15,710
BNEE Contract assets - - - 132410 132,410
TASREEMNEMTE  Financial assets included in
EE other current assets
—E®E* — Normal** 89,223 - - - 89,223
&~ RITEFNLERS  Cash, bank balances, and fixed
BN deposits
— MR — Not yet past due 1,068,119 - - - 1,068,119
1,157,342 - - 148,120 1,305,462
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26. EREEEERAREE (&)

(@) 1EEEM ()

* AR ERIBREBCENBUIRIRM S - MUBES
R R TR EDRH I A 5 SRR PRE 0 38R -

o BRFASREENEMASEENEOH AN EE
HERZETREEBDRRBLIRNEERRA
B LR ZEEENEEERERR TER, ©

BZE 20243831 HIEFE  £ENRAKREFNE
WERFRAG FEUSBR FRABZBAY 50% (2021 £ © 54%)

BE202F3 A3 BEFE £AENRAKREFNEG
HEEIRGHIEEMREN 70% (2021 F 1 72%) -°

BEREENDRREBBRRFEERRNWE-—FHES
1 FIRHMSEE 9

(b) REBEZER

SENBREERELZRBDESHNR » DIEREFTR
RS EE - BAZIMREOME RS BRIRRNEEMN
TREFIIHHTAE B RENRRERA 2 HFEHEIH
B WHRBTOARBRRSRE (BELETHORE
STEZMEXH  BERFEAE - QIARESRE R
HMNERFE AN B ) RAKEREENRARES
e &xF BHMEH -

YENR BUREMBSRUBHRS

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

* For accounts receivable to which the Council applies the simplified approach for

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to
be "normal" when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 March 2022, 50% (2021: 54%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Council's five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2022, 70% (2021: 72%) of the total contract assets related to the Council's
five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council 's exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note 9.

(b)  Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and reasonably foreseeable
obligations as they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
and the Council can be required to pay.
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26. THRSEERAREE (B) 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)
(b) mENELER (&) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
£E The Group
2022 5§ 2022
HWETH
KRR i8iB—FE
RERE BR—FR NBRE
Total HEER More than
BREE contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HEAE (14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 927 949 483 466
IS aEBIERSERFA  Finandial liabilities included in
HithmEhEME (MIEE 1)  accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 1,265,827 1,265,827 1,265,827 -
1,266,754 1,266,776 1,266,310 466
EENB The Council
2022 2022
HWETH
KRR i8iB—FE
RERE BR—FR NBRE
Total HEER More than
BREE contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HEAE (14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 909 932 466 466
IS aEBIERSERFA  Finandial liabilities included in
HihmEhEE (MI5E 1)  accounts payable and other
current liabilities (note 11) 1,263,794 1,263,794 1,263,794 -
BB ARKIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 12,024 12,024 12,024 -
1,276,727 1,276,750 1,276,284 466
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26. EREPEERERAREE () 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)
(b) RENELERE (&) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
&£H The Group
2021 5§ 2021
HETHY
KRR iBB—FE BB FE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBRE
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5years
BETT EBETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HESRE (M 14 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1,445 1,51 563 482 466

B aEEIERSIRFA  Finandial liabilities included in
HitmBh&E (BIEE 1) accounts payable and other

current liabilities (note 11) 751,066 751,066 751,066 - -
752,511 752,577 751,629 482 466
EENR The Council
2021 £ 2021
HETHY
KRR iBB—FE BBmEE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBRE
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5years
BETT EBETR BT BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HESE (K514 Lease liabilities (note 14) 1332 1,398 466 466 466

B S aEBIEESERF A Finandial liabilities included in
HihmEhEE (Md5E 1)  accounts payable and other

current liabilities (note 11) 748,741 748,741 748,741 - -
FENHIBARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,926 11,926 11,926 - -
761,999 762,065 761,133 466 466
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.

(d)  Currency risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

(e)  Capital management

The Group defines "capital” as including all components of total funds. Trading balances
that arise as a result of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall
due for the foreseeable future.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current and prior years.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following related party transactions during the

year:

Council Membership of the Council is appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Government. The Government has significant influence over the Council, and transactions
between the Council and the Government are considered to be related party transactions
and are identified separately in these financial statements. During the year, the Council had
the following related party transactions with the Government and Council Members:

2022 2021

BT BIETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

IWERBR T E B - AR E MR ED Receipt of government subvention used for recurrent activities 235,771 233,460
BT Bh Government grant 8,951 10,785
REBHTHIRIFWA (FisEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 187,306 163,537
KEKRFEBEENWA (MisEb)  Service income from government funding schemes (note b) 176,203 131,877
IWABAEENBESFSHEBBNEME Income from entities related to members of the Council 1,289 983
HEEAENRBEESXEEHIVMRE Purchases from entities related to members of the Council 470 60
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27. RABRARS () 27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

FsE Notes:

(a) REBFHRBBAIE S MIREEE RIERE (a) The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental
BRI - XBER WEERBESEE © IkE management, technology development, information technology, business management,
IEEWEAREAT  HEBEARRKITIHREEE secretariat projects with the Government, etc., which were obtained either by a
I B AR EMEG - MAERE MU A R R R K competitive process or through partnership agreements with various government
FRUEREY © departments and bureaus, and the income was charged in accordance with the terms of

the agreements.

by REBFEBFINBAEBRIES (BRIEARIT (b)  The service income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research
BIBHETCER ) RERMEERBCIER  t%F and development (excluding projects acting as implementation agent) and secretariat
HEHZEBHEAANEBREAF R BT L% projects which were obtained by a competitive process or through agreements with
MES - MR R IR B BRI - Innovation and Technology Commission, and the income was charged in accordance

with the terms of the agreements.

28. UBEmRAHLE 28. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KU ERBEENBR 2022 F 7 A 27 B A The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 July
B o 2022.
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